
i 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE, 
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX 

 
Telephone:  01730 266551 

Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: Thursday, 20 February 2020 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX 

 
 

 
Membership:      Councillor S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, F Cowper, D Evans, 
A Glass, S Hunt, C Louisson, P Langley, S Schillemore, N Taylor, I Thomas 
and E Woodard 
 
Reserves:  Councillors K Budden, S Burns, K Carter, M Johnson and               
T Maroney 
 

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS) 
 

 
 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
 
David Brown 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Date of Publication: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 
 
Contact Officer: Cynthia Haveron 01730 234092 
 Email:  cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk 
 

 

Working in Partnership 



ii 
 

 

  Page Nos 

1.  Apologies for Absence   
 

 

2.  Confirmation of Minutes   
 

Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes. 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2020, circulated under 
separate cover.  
 

 

 

3.  Chairman's Announcements   
 

 

4.  Declarations of Interest   
 

Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter.  
 

 

 

Matters for Decision 
 

 
 

5.  Acceptance of Supplementary Matters   
 

 

6.  Future Items   
  
 

9 - 10 

7.  Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place   
 

 

 

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items 
 

 
 

 There are no Part 1 items on this agenda 
 

 

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items 
 

 
 

Section I 
 

 
 

7.(i)   SDNP/19/05797/HOUS - 17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield, GU32 
3BX   
Single storey rear extension 
 

Associated documents - https://tinyurl.com/rcxmwpo 
 
 
 

11 - 24 

https://tinyurl.com/rcxmwpo


iii 
 

 
 
 

7.(ii)   SDNP/19/05324/HOUS - Chestnut Cottage, Newton Lane, Newton 
Valence   
Two storey rear extension 
 
Associated documents - https://tinyurl.com/qlyvjdv 
 
 
 

25 - 42 

 

Section II 
 

 
 

 There are no Section 2 items within this agenda 
 
 
  
 

 

https://tinyurl.com/qlyvjdv


iv 
 

 
  
 



 

 
v 

   

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073. 
 
 

Internet 
 

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Public Attendance and Participation 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda.  
 
Disabled Access 
 

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds 
 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority. 

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can determine 
planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area of the district 
on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South Downs National 
Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP.  

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT 

The report is divided into two main parts;  

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.   

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which the 
Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National Park 
Authority.   

Each part of the report is split into two sections:   

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations  

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, details 
of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items. 

Section 2 – Other matters  

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse.  

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 

No formal presentation will be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be 
no public participation.” 

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are understood 
to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in advance of the 
Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports may have been 
prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or neighbour comment.  
Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between 
preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where additional information has 
been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper will be circulated at the 
meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to members of the public. 

3. PLANNING POLICY 

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material policies 
or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application should be 
determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are other material 
considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and other material 
considerations will also be taken into account.  One such consideration will be whether 
the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The relevant development plans are the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 
2014, the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations 
2016 and the saved policies in the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 
2006.  The Development Plan also includes made neighbourhood Plans. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on each item.   

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February  2019 states:  
“Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”   

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development that 
departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it should 
proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-date in 
terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS  

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also fairly 
and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters of 
what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in land-
use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 

Page 2



 

landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.   

4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are: 

 loss of property value  loss of view 
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants 
 the impact of construction 

work 
 property maintenance issues 

 need for development (save in 
certain defined circumstances) 

 the identity or personal characteristics of 
the applicant 

 competition between firms,   or matters that are dealt with by other 
legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not 
a reason to refuse planning permission 
or defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation. 

 

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  Nevertheless, 
where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to relevant 
considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.   

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because there 
are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its merits in 
the light of all the material considerations.  

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a clear 
land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way that is 
clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special and 
precise justification.  

 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations should 
meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be:  
 necessary; 
 relevant to planning; 
 directly related to the proposed development; 
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 

Page 3



 

 reasonable in all other respects. 

 

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that planning 
permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for unacceptable 
development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements offered by a 
developer, which are not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration to be taken into account 
when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it is for the Council to decide 
what weight should be attached to a particular material consideration.  

6. PLANNING APPEALS  

Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it: 
 

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time. 

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance. 

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show clearly, 
why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be 

 complete,  
 precise,  
 specific 
 relevant to the application, and 
 supported by substantiated evidence.  

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice  

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence. 

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal but 
rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision. 

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed. 

 
The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council: 
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF, 
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach.  

Page 4



 

An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 77 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site, 

(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law, 
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable, 

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the planning 
authority where circumstances have not materially changed, 

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances, 

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage, 

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions, 

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 56 of the NPPF, or 

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters. 

 

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE 

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an application 
to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. In general, 
this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State will not interfere 
with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is necessary to do so.  The 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of development proposals that directs 
local authorities to consult with the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission. 

 

8. PROPRIETY 

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning applications 
they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can include views 
expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support for a proposal is 
not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons.  

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS  

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the public 

Page 5



 

interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and private 
interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not whether 
owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial or other 
loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably 
affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought to be protected 
in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of private property are 
therefore not material planning consideration. 

10. OTHER LEGISLATION  

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular:  

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities.  

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for providing 
a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by providing a 
lower standard of service.  

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain and 
promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic rights 
of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in order to 
protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific Articles of 
the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public hearing), 
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), 
Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).  All planning 
applications are assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the 
development proposal is compatible with the Act.  If there is a potential conflict, 
this will be highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 
 

11. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum 
of three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak must 
have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 hours 
before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at the 
Committee meeting itself. 

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will be 
allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the Committee 
meeting.   

 

Page 6



 

12.  INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS 

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and 
at the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The files 
and drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for 
Councillors to inspect. 

13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the event 
of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s decision.  
Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications may result in 
the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning appeal.  Officers will 
aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such 
circumstances. 

 
Simon Jenkins 
Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case) 
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014 
 East Hampshire Employment & Housing allocations Plan 2016 
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies 
 Adopted Neighbourhood Plans: Alton, Bentley, Medstead & Four Marks, Ropley, 

Petersfield, Liss, and East Meon 
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements 
 any other document specifically referred to in the report. 

Page 7

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
20 February 2020 

 
POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT 

 
 
The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits 
under this item. 
 
 

 Reference Description and Address 

1  
27887/010 
 
 
 

 
Outline Application  - Single storey museum building to 
display 'Cold War' era artefacts  with a cafe and a shop 
(D1 use) (All matters Reserved)  
 
Keepers Lodge, Basingstoke Road, Alton, GU34 4AB 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 

 
2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SDNP/19/06024/FUL 

 
Development of 11 new dwellings comprising 1 no. 
detached 2 storey dwelling and 10 no. semi-detached 2 
storey dwellings, detached garage block, 2 no. new 
access from Coombe Road and 5 metre landscape buffer 
on southern boundary. 
 
Land adjacent to Coppice Cottages, Coombe Road 
East Meon 
 
The South Downs National Park Authority has directed 
that this application will be dealt with by that Authority.  It 
has been included in this section for information only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 
3 

 
SDNP/20/00384/CND 

 
Variation of Conditions - Conditions 15, 16, 18, 19, 20 and 
21 of SDNP/15/06484/FUL (as amended by 
SDNP/18/03762/CND) 
 
Penns Field, Heathfield Road, Petersfield.  
 
The South Downs National Park Authority has directed 
that this application will be dealt with by that Authority.  It 
has been included in this section for information only. 
 

 

Page 10



  

Page 11



PART 2 
 
 

SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE  

 
Applications to be determined by the council on behalf  

of the South Downs National Park Authority 
 

 
20 February 2020 

 
SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

  

Agenda Item 01 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

Date 20 February 2020 

By Director of Planning 

Local Authority East Hampshire District Council 

Application Number SDNP/19/05797/HOUS 

Applicant Mr & Mrs D Robbins 

Application Single storey rear extension 

Address 
17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield,  

GU32 3BX 

Recommendation: That the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report. 

Executive Summary 

This application is included on the agenda as it has been submitted by a member of staff. 

The Monitoring Officer confirms that this proposal has been dealt with in accordance with the 
Council's procedures for handling planning proposals submitted by or on behalf of Council 
Members and Staff. 

 

Page 12



1. Site Description 

17 Stoneham Close is a detached dwelling on the south side of the road, with materials of red 
brickwork under a tiled roof. The land is fairly flat. The dwelling is set back from the road with 
off-road parking to the front, leading to an integral double garage to the side. The enclosed 
rear garden is screened by a mix of fencing and hedging, with trees beyond the rear boundary 
fence. The site is within the South Downs National Park, the settlement policy boundary of 
Petersfield and the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

2.  Proposal 
Permission is sought for a mono-pitched, single storey extension to the rear of the dwelling. It 
would have an 'L' shaped footprint and would measure 9.3m wide x 3m and 2.3m long 
respectively x 4.9m and 3.5m high respectively, with an eaves height of 2.7m, to 
accommodate a sun lounge and gym. Three rooflights are proposed within the rear roofslope, 
with a window and French doors within the rear elevation and a window within the internal 
side elevation facing the patio area. Materials would be to match the existing house. 
Further information has been received to confirm the use of low transmittance glass to the 
rooflights, large glass windows and French doors. 
 
 
3. Relevant Planning History 
 
None. 
 
4. Consultations  
 
Parish Council Consultee - No Objection 
 
 
5. Representations 
 
None received. 
 
 
6. Planning Policy Context 
 
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area is the South 
Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant minerals and waste plans. Other plans 
considered: 
 

 Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan 
 
The development plan policies and other material considerations considered relevant to this 
application are set out in section 7, below. 
 

Page 13



National Park Purposes 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,  

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the special 
qualities of their areas. 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. There is 
also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community in pursuit of 
these purposes. 
  
7.  Planning Policy  
 
Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance  
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and the 
Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), updated February 2019. The Circular and NPPF confirm that National 
Parks have the highest status of protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 that great 
weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in national 
parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage are also 
important considerations and should be given great weight in National Parks. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in the 
assessment of this application:  
 
Section 12: Achieving well-designed places of the NPPF is considered to be particularly 
relevant to the consideration of this application. 
 
The South Downs National Park Authority adopted (made) the Petersfield Neighbourhood 
Development Plan on 21 January 2016. Its policies are therefore afforded full weight as an 
adopted policy document forming part of the Development Plan. 
 
BEP 1 The character, setting and quality of the town's built environment 
BEP 6 The Settlement Boundary 
 
The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance with the 
NPPF and are considered to be compliant with the NPPF. 
 
The following policies of the South Downs Local Plan are relevant to this application: 
 

 Core Policy SD1 - Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services 

 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design 

 Strategic Policy SD8 - Dark Night Skies 

 Strategic Policy SD9 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Development Management Policy SD22 - Parking Provision 

Page 14



 Strategic Policy SD25 - Development Strategy 

 Development Management Policy SD31 - Extensions to existing dwellings, and 
provision of annexes and outbuildings 

 
Partnership Management Plan 
The Environment Act 1995 requires National Parks to produce a Management Plan setting 
out strategic management objectives to deliver the National Park Purposes and Duty. 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) states that Management Plans "contribute to 
setting the strategic context for development" and "are material considerations in making 
decisions on individual planning applications." The South Downs Partnership Management 
Plan as amended for 2020-2025 on 19 December 2019, sets out a Vision, Outcomes, Policies 
and a Delivery Framework for the National Park over the next five years.  
 
 
8.  Planning Assessment 
 
Determining Issues 
 
1. Principle of development 
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
3. Impact upon scale and character of dwelling and impact on the character of the area 
4. Ecology and biodiversity 
5. Highway implications 
6. Impact on the South Downs National Park 
 
Planning Considerations  
 
1. Principle of development 
 
The Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan identifies the site as falling within the Settlement Policy 
Boundary of Petersfield. Policy BEP6 of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan applies to 
development within the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) where there is a presumption in 
favour of development.  
 
Policy SD25 of the South Downs Local Plan (SDLP) applies to development within the 
Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) where there is a presumption in favour of development. 
 
Policy SD31 of the South Downs Local Plan places a limit on proposals which would increase 
the gross internal area of the existing dwelling (as at 18 December 2002) by no more than 
approximately 30%. 
  
The proposal is for a mono-pitched, single storey rear extension, to accommodate a sun room 
and gym. The floor space calculations for the dwelling are as follows:  
 
Original dwelling pre 2002 = 130.4sqm 
Proposed extension = 19.88sqm 

Page 15



Proposed dwelling = 150.28sqm 
 
From the figures, the proposal would result in a 15% increase in floorspace and, therefore, 
would be in accordance with Policy SD31 of the Local Plan. The principle of the development 
is, therefore, considered to be acceptable, subject to the considerations below.  
 
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
 
The NPPF seeks to ensure that developments provide a good level of amenity for all new and 
existing occupants of land and buildings. 
 
Policy SD5 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that there is no unacceptable impact upon 
neighbouring amenity.  
 
There are no neighbouring properties to the rear of the site. 
 
The adjacent neighbouring property at 19 Stoneham Close has ground and first floor 
openings within the rear elevation, with a single storey rear extension of a similar depth and 
design. The existing boundary treatment between this neighbouring property and the 
application site consists of hedging. The proposal would extend beyond the existing double 
garage and rear elevation, of the adjacent property by approximately 2m, with a distance of 
1.5m between dwellings. No side windows are proposed facing 19 Stoneham Close.  
 
The rear garden of the application site faces south. The 45° angle test for overshadowing has 
been carried out from the middle of the ground floor window close to the side boundary at 19 
Stoneham Close and the extension would not breach this test. Although the proposed single 
storey rear extension would be visible from 19 Stoneham Close, it is considered that there 
would be no excessive overshadowing or loss of privacy, the effects are unlikely to be 
significant and the proposal is acceptable in this respect.  
 
The adjacent neighbouring property at 15 Stoneham Close also has ground and first floor 
openings within the rear elevation. The boundary treatment between this neighbouring 
property and the application site consists of fencing. A side window is proposed facing 15 
Stoneham Close. However, the proposal would be sited to the far side away from the 
neighbouring property, with a distance of 6.5m between dwellings and at single storey views 
would be screened by the existing side boundary fence.  
 
As such, it is considered that the proposal would be sufficiently distanced, orientated and 
designed so as not to have an unacceptable effect on the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties, in particular to their outlook, privacy or available light. Having regard to the above, 
the proposal is compliant with Policy SD5 of the SDNP Local Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



3. Impact upon scale and character of dwelling and impact on the character of the area 
 
Policy BEP1 of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan requires development to meet the highest 
standards of design and make a positive contribution to the character of Petersfield. 
 
Policy SD2 of the SDNP Local Plan seeks to have an overall positive impact on the ability of 
the natural environment to contribute goods and services, and how the development proposal 
impacts, both positively and negatively on ecosystem services. 
 
Policy SD5 of the SDNP Local Plan also seeks to ensure good design. 
 
The dwelling is set within a reasonably sized plot. The area is characterised by similar style 
detached or semi-detached dwellings. The footprint of the single storey rear extension is 
considered to be sympathetic to the dwellinghouse and the size of the rear garden. The single 
storey height and mono-pitched roof also ensures that the extension appears subservient to 
the main property. The materials to be used would match the existing dwelling. 
 
Due to its single storey height and position to the rear of the dwelling, the proposed single 
storey rear extension would not result in any negative impact upon the streetscene or the 
wider area. As such, it is considered that the character of the dwelling would be retained. 
 
The scale and bulk of the proposal would be in keeping with the existing property and 
surrounding buildings and would not appear overly dominant in the streetscene or wider area. 
The dwelling would not be unbalanced by the proposal and existing features such as ridge 
heights, eaves heights and other proportions would be reflected in the extension. 
 
As such, it is considered that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact upon 
the scale and character of the dwelling nor the local area. Having regard to the above, the 
proposal is compliant with Policy BEP 1 of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan and policy 
SD2 and SD5 of the South Downs Local Plan. 
 
4. Ecology and biodiversity 
 
Policies SD2 (Ecosystem Services) and SD9 (Biodiversity net gain) of the emerging SDNP 
Local plan seek to ensure that development proposals have an overall positive impact on the 
ability of the natural environment. 
 
The proposal would include the collection of rainwater via two water butts, additional flower 
planting, a bird box and insect hotel would be added and no increase to the risk of flooding as 
the footprint would not extend beyond the existing hard surface patio. These measures would 
be secured through a condition. As such it is considered that, the proposal would be in 
compliance with Policies SD2 and SD9 of the SDNP Local Plan. 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



5. Highway implications 
 
Policy SD22 of the SDNP Local Plan seeks to ensure that there is sufficient parking.  
There are already four parking spaces to serve this dwelling. The proposal would not result in 
an increase in the number of bedrooms for the dwelling and the access and the parking 
arrangements would not be affected, thus there are no highway implications associated with 
the development. Having regard to the above, the proposal is compliant with Policy SD22 of 
the SDNP Local Plan. 
 
6. Impact on the South Downs National Park  
 
The site is located within the South Downs National Park and, as such, the proposal is to be 
assessed in terms of its impact on its purposes. The site is within a residential area and within 
the settlement policy boundary of Petersfield. Policy SD08 of the South Downs Local Plan 
states that development will be permitted where it conserves and enhances the intrinsic 
quality of dark night skies and the integrity of the Dark Sky Core policies map. The designated 
International Dark Night Reserve is part of the special quality of the National Park. 
 
Policy SD08 makes it clear that the spill of lights from large open glass windows and sky 
lights often present a greater source of light pollution than externally mounted lights. 
Consequently, it is important to control the lighting coming from these types of developments. 
In this instance, the proposal would include three rooflights and French doors. Further 
information has been received to confirm the use of low transmittance glass for the rooflights, 
large glass windows and French doors. The use of such measures to control external light 
spillage would be secured through a condition. 
 
As such, the proposal is considered to have a minimal effect on the South Downs National 
Park. 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable as it would be in scale and character with the 
dwelling, would not detract from the character and appearance of the area or the South 
Downs National Park, would not have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring properties and would not have an adverse effect on the safety and function of 
the highway network. As such, the proposal is in compliance with the South Downs Local 
Plan and the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
10.  Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
 
It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 

Page 18



Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended)/ To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. Approved Plans 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans listed 
below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application". 
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. The external materials to be used shall match, as closely as possible, in type, colour, and 
texture those of the existing building unless details of other suitable materials are submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved between the new and 
the existing developments. 
 
4. No development above slab level shall take place until details of the low transmittance 
glass to be used in the three rooflights and the window and French doors in the rear elevation 
of the extension hereby permitted have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
details and retained to the agreed specifications thereafter. 
Reason - To protect the character of the countryside, and the designated International Dark 
Night Reserve, which is part of the special quality of the South Downs National Park, in 
accordance with National Park Purposes and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 
 
5. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a minimum of one bat 
roosting unit/ bird box, insect hotel and two water butts shall be installed within the site. They 
shall be installed as per manufacturer's instructions and shall be retained and maintained in a 
condition suitable to its intended function.  
Reason - To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy SD9 of the SDNP 
Local Plan. 
 
Informative Notes to Applicant: 
 
1.In reaching this decision the local planning authority has worked with the applicant in a 
positive and proactive way, in line with the NPPF. 
 
11. Crime and Disorder Implications 
  
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications. 
  
12. Human Rights Implications  
 
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 
interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the aims 
sought to be realised.  
 

Page 19



13. Equality Act 2010  
 
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 
as contained within the Equality Act 2010.  
 
 
14. Proactive Working  
 
In this instance the applicant was updated of any issues after the initial site visit, with further 
information received. No further assistance was required. 

 

Background Documents None. 

 
 
Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 

Plan Type Reference Version 
Date on 
Plan 

Status 

 

Application Form -    03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents - Ecosystem 
service statement 

  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents - Baseline 
assessment checklist 

  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents - CIL - additional 
information 

  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

OS Extract - Location plan   03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Block plan   03.12.2019 Approved 

Page 20



 

Plans - Existing ground floor and 
elevations 

PL1  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Proposed elevations and roof plan PL2  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Proposed ground floor plan PL3  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Proposed section A-A PL4  03.12.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Existing and proposed first floor 
plan 

PL5  11.12.2019 Approved 

 

Reasons - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

  

Page 21



Section1 Item 1, 17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield 

 

 

 
 

Proposed block plan 
 

  

Page 22



Section1 Item 1, 17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Proposed side elevations 

Page 23



Section1 Item 1, 17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield 

 
 
 
 

 
Proposed rear elevation 

Page 24



 

 

  

Page 25



Agenda Item 02 

Report to Planning Committee 

Date 20 February 2020 

By Director of Planning 

Local Authority East Hampshire District Council 

Application Number SDNP/19/05324/HOUS 

Applicant Mr R Porter 

Application Two storey rear extension 

Address 

Chestnut Cottage, Newton Lane, Newton 
Valence, Alton, GU34 3RE 

 

Recommendation: That the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report. 

Executive Summary 

This application has been included on the agenda at the request of Councillor Charles 

Louisson for the following reason: 

Concerns raised that the application proposes an increase in the floorspace of the existing 

dwelling by more than approximately 30%, thus is contrary to policy SD31 of the SDNP 

Local Plan. 

 

1.  Site Description 

Chestnut Cottage is a detached dwelling located in a rural area, outside the settlement 
policy boundary. The site sits towards the edge of Newton Valence, forming part of a 
series of scattered housing fronting Newton Lane. 
 
Several listed buildings are located in the vicinity of the dwelling, including the 
neighbouring property to the west, Bookham Cottage. 
 
 
2.  Proposal 
The applicant seeks planning permission for a two storey rear extension, which would 
measure 8.7 metres in width, 4 metres in depth, 6.7 metres to maximum height and 4.3 
metres to maximum eaves height. The roof would have a double pitch roof with a central 
valley gutter and a dormer window is proposed in the eastern side roofslope. It is proposed 
the extension would be used as a ground floor living area and kitchen, with the first floor 
used as a master bedroom and two en suites. Juliet style balconies are detailed to the first 
floor master bedroom. 
 
 
 

Page 26



3.  Relevant Planning History 

SDNP/19/01034/LDP - Lawful development certificate for proposed - Single storey 
extension to rear 26.04.2019 

 

4. Consultations  
 
Newton Valence Parish Council - Objects to this planning application for the following 
reasons: 
 

 Proposal in excess of 30% of existing floorspace.  

 Harmful impact to neighbouring amenity  

 Harmful impact to nearby listed buildings 

 Harmful impact to bats and ecology 

 Light pollution 
 
EH - Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to informative.  
 
HCC - Ecology Group – No objection subject to condition. 
  
 
5. Representations 
 
Five neighbour representations received all objecting to the proposal on the following 
grounds:- 
 
a) The design, scale and materials would harm the character of existing dwelling and local 
area; 
b) overlooking and harm to outlook of neighbouring property; 
c) harm to setting of nearby listed buildings; 
d) ecology issues (bats); 
e) harm to dark night skies; 
f) excessive floorspace; 
g) impact on trees and, 
h) 50% increase in floorspace. 
 
Comments are also made in relation to disturbance from construction work and 
construction vehicles, as well as the fact that the property is rented, which are not 
considered to be a material planning consideration. 
 
 

6.  Planning Policy Context 

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area is 
the South Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant minerals and waste plans. 
Other plans considered: 
 
The development plan policies and other material considerations considered relevant to 
this application are set out in section 7, below. 
 

Page 27



National Park Purposes 
 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,  

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the special 
qualities of their areas. 
 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. There is 
also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community in pursuit of 
these purposes.  
 
 
7.  Planning Policy  
 
Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance 
  
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and the 
Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), updated February 2019. The Circular and NPPF confirm that National 
Parks have the highest status of protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 that 
great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in 
national parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage 
are also important considerations and should be given great weight in National Parks. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
 
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in 
the assessment of this application:  
 
16. Conserving the historic environment 
12. Achieving well-designed places 
 
The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance with 
the NPPF and are considered to be compliant with the NPPF. 
 
The following policies of the South Downs Local Plan are relevant to this application: 
 

 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services 

 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design 

 Strategic Policy SD9 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Strategic Policy SD12 - Historic Environment 

 Development Management Policy SD22 - Parking Provision 

 Strategic Policy SD27 - Mix of Homes 

 Development Management Policy SD31 - Extensions to existing dwellings, and 
provision of annexes and outbuildings 

 Strategic Policy SD8 - Dark Night Skies 

 

Page 28



Partnership Management Plan 

The Environment Act 1995 requires National Parks to produce a Management Plan setting 
out strategic management objectives to deliver the National Park Purposes and Duty. 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) states that Management Plans "contribute to 
setting the strategic context for development" and "are material considerations in making 
decisions on individual planning applications." The South Downs Partnership Management 
Plan as amended for 2020-2025 on 19 December 2019, sets out a Vision, Outcomes, 
Policies and a Delivery Framework for the National Park over the next five years. The 
relevant policies include: 

 Outcome one. 
 
 

8.  Planning Assessment 
 
Determining Issues 
 
1. Principle of development 
2. Impact upon scale and character of local area 
3. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
4. Highway implications 
5. Impact on the South Downs National Park 
6. Ecology 
7. Impact on Dark Sky Core  
8. Impact on the setting of nearby listed buildings 
9. Impact on trees 
 
Planning Considerations 
  
1.Principle of development 
 
Policy SD31 of the South Downs Local Plan places a limit on proposals which should 
increase the gross internal area (GIA) of the existing dwelling (as at 18 December 2002) 

by no more than approximately 30%. 
  
The existing building measures approximately 119 square metres, and the proposed 
extension would have a GIA floorspace of 62 m2, although an existing extension with a 
floorspace of 5m2 would be demolished, a net gain of 57m2. This would result in a 
dwelling measuring approximately 176 square metres. This would result in a dwelling 
approximately 47.9% larger, in excess of the limit of Policy SD31.  
 
Policy SD31 states that the purpose of SD31 is to "to avoid the over-extension of existing 
dwellings and the adverse impact that this has on the character and appearance of both 
settlements and the countryside" and "protect the limited supply of small and medium-
sized homes in the National Park" in line with Policy SD27, which seeks to protect the 
limited supply of small and medium-sized homes in the National Park. The guidance notes 
confirm that a 'small' dwelling should be defined as one measuring 120 square metres in 
GIA.  
 
 
 

Page 29



In this instance, the property could change from a small to medium size property under 
permitted development rights, and it would be a classed as a medium sized, 3 bedroom 
property if the extension hereby proposed was built. On this basis the proposal is not 
considered to conflict with the core purpose of SD31. It is also noted that the text of the 
policy also refers to an uplift in floorspace of "more than approximately 30%.  
 
On this basis, it is considered reasonable in this instance to depart from the floorspace 
restrictions of Policy SD31. It is also noted that the proposal would accord with criteria (b) 
and (c) of the policy (as discussed in section 2 below). 
  
This Officer assessment has been forwarded to the Planning Policy Manager at the South 
Downs National Park Authority who concurs with the Officer conclusions in terms of the 
application of Policy SD31. 
 
The principle of development is therefore acceptable, subject to all other material planning 
considerations as discussed below. In the event that the development is approved, it is 
recommended that a condition be imposed to remove permitted development rights so that 
the habitable floorspace could not be further extended and take the property out of the 
"medium" sized property category. 
 
2. Impact upon scale and character of local area 
 
Policy SD5 of the South Downs Local Plan seeks to ensure that development proposals 
are of a high standard of design and architecture, with a high quality external appearance 
that respect the area's particular characteristics. It requires that developments are 
sympathetic to their setting in terms of scale, height and massing, and their relationship to 
adjoining buildings, spaces around buildings, and that developments should make a 
positive contribution to the overall appearance of the area. As noted above, criteria b and c 
of Policy SD31 state that the policy purpose is to avoid the over-extension of existing 
dwellings and the adverse impact that this has on the character and appearance of both 
settlements and the countryside.  

The proposal would form a relatively large addition to the rear of the dwellinghouse, and 
such additions can be overly dominant to dwellings, harming their character. However, in 
this instance, the extension would have a subservient appearance to the host dwelling, 
with the ridge height of the proposed extension over 1 metre lower than that of the existing 
roof. The proposal would be largely concealed from the public domain by the existing 
dwelling, and would therefore only have a minimal impact on the character and 
appearance of the street scene and wider area.  

The proposal would therefore accord with relevant design policy SD5 and criteria b and c 
of Policy SD31. 
 
3. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties 
 
Policy SD5 of the South Downs Local Plan requires that developments would not have an 
unacceptable impact on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring properties through 
loss of privacy or excessive overshadowing. Paragraph 127 f of NPPF requires, amongst 
other core principles, that developments should provide a good level of amenity for all new 
and existing occupants of land and buildings.  
 

Page 30



The neighbouring dwelling to the west, Bookham Cottage, is situated approximately 9 
metres away from the side elevation of the host dwelling, and is situated closer to the road 
than Chestnut Cottage. Due to this distancing and forward alignment, the proposed rear 
extension would not have an unacceptable impact to the outlook and light of Bookham 
Cottage. Whilst the proposal would be visible from the rear garden of Bookham Cottage, it 
would be situated approximately 7 metres away from the boundary between the two 
properties. Furthermore, the relatively modest depth of the proposal relative to the length 
of the rear garden of Bookham Cottage would minimise any impact to neighbouring 
outlook. There are no first floor windows proposed on the west side elevation of the 
extension which could afford elevated overlooking of this neighbour.  
 
The neighbouring properties to the east and north are sufficiently distanced so as not to be 
unacceptably impacted by the proposal, such that the dormer window in the eastern side 
elevation would not result in any overlooking of neighbouring properties. 
  
4. Highway implications 
 
Policy SD22 of the South Downs Local Plan requires that regard is had to any impact on 
the safety and convenience of the public highway. The proposal would result in an 
increase of the dwelling from 2 bedrooms to 3 bedrooms, whereby the parking space 
requirement would remain at 2 spaces. It is noted that ample parking exists on the 
driveway for the dwelling to provide parking for at least 2 vehicles.  
 
5. Impact on the South Downs National Park 
 
The proposal is within the South Downs National Park and proposals within this area 
would not be permitted if they would harm the tranquillity and appearance of the landscape 
and any development must meet the purposes of the National Park.  
The proposal is for development at an existing dwellinghouse and it is considered that the 
proposed works would not cause harm to the purposes of the National Park or have an 
adverse impact on the tranquillity and appearance of the surrounding area. 
 
6. Ecology 
 
Policies SD2 (Ecosystems Services) and SD9 (Biodiversity net gain) of the South Downs 
Local Plan seek to ensure that development proposals have an overall positive impact on 
the ability of the natural environment.  
 
The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Roost Appraisal and Bat Activity Surveys 
report (ABR Ecology, October 2019). The dwelling has been shown to support small 
summer roosts of common pipistrelle, serotine and brown long-eared bats.  
 
This development will affect bats, which receive strict legal protection under UK law by the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and under EU law by the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (commonly referred to as the Habitats 
Regulations). Where developments affect EPS, permission can be granted unless the 
development is likely to result in a breach of the EU Directive underpinning the Habitats 
Regulations and is unlikely to be granted an EPS licence from Natural England to allow the 
development to proceed under a derogation from the law. 
 

Page 31



An assessment of the proposal against the three derogation tests must be applied in this 
instance to determine the likelihood of a protected species license being granted for the 
proposed development as without it, the development as proposed would likely lead to 
disturbance of protected bat species within the building. 
 
These tests are:  
 
1. the activity to be licensed must be for imperative reasons of overriding public interest or 
for public health and safety; 
2. there must be no satisfactory alternative; and 
3. favourable conservation status of the species must be maintained. 
 
In this instance, the proposed extensions would result in a significant social benefit to the 
occupants of the dwelling providing a dwelling which has a more satisfactory layout and 
space for the family's requirements and for future occupants. 
 
The only alternative to the second test is that the dwelling is not extended which is not an 
option for the proposed development. As possible mitigation measures could be put in 
place it would seem unreasonable to deny the applicant on this point. 
 
In order to assess the development against the third test, sufficient detail must be available 
to show how killing/injury/disturbance of bats will be avoided and how the loss or damage 
to bat habitat will be compensated.  
 
The County Ecologist has been consulted and has not objected to the proposed works, 
subject to adherence to the mitigation measures outlined in the aforementioned report. It is 
proposed to install interim bat boxes on trees, to undertake supervised removal of potential 
roosting features and to provide new compensatory roosting features on the new structure. 
It is the responsibility of the applicants and their appointed agents to ensure that all works 
impacting bats are carried out under a European Protected Species licence and that all 
licence conditions are met in full. 
 
A condition can be imposed, if planning permission is granted, that the mitigation 
measures are implemented accordingly.  
 
7. Impact on Dark Sky Core  
 
Policy SD08 of the South Downs Local Plan states development proposals will be 
permitted where they conserve and enhance the intrinsic quality of dark night skies and 
the integrity of the Dark Sky Core. Concern has been raised in neighbour representation 
that the proposal would result in greater light pollution in the vicinity. However, the areas of 
glazing are not considered to be particularly extensive for a residential extension, and save 
for a small proposed skylight none of the windows would be orientated upwards towards 
the sky. It is not therefore considered that the proposal would conflict with Policy SD08 of 
the South Downs Local Plan. 
 
8. Impact on the setting of neighbouring Listed Buildings. 
 
Several listed buildings are located in the vicinity of the dwelling, including the 
neighbouring Bookham Cottage. 
 

Page 32



Policy SD12 of the South Downs Local Plan state that development proposals will only be 
permitted where they conserve and enhance the historic environment, including through 
the safeguarding of heritage assets and their setting. Policy SD13 of the South Downs 
Local Plan states that development proposals which affect a listed building or its setting 
will only be permitted and listed building consent granted where they preserve and 
enhance the significance of the listed building. 
 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
planning authorities, when considering whether to grant planning permission for 
development which affects a listed building or its setting, to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural 
or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
As noted above, the host dwelling is substantially distanced from Bookham Cottage, and 
the proposed extension would be largely concealed from the street scene by the host 
dwelling. On this basis there would not be an unacceptable impact on the historic and 
architectural setting of the listed buildings in the vicinity. The Conservation Officer has 
been consulted and agrees with this assessment. The proposal would therefore accord 
with Policies SD12 and SD13 of the South Downs Local Plan and section 66 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 
9. Impact on Trees 
 
There are no protected trees on the site which could be harmed by the proposed 
development. A large tree is located at the rear of the site but as this would be over 12 
metres away from the proposed extension, it is considered unlikely that it would be harmed 
as a result of the works.  
 
Response of the comments of the Parish Council. 
 
The Parish Council has objected to the development on the following grounds: 
 

 Proposal in excess of 30% of existing floorspace.  

 Harmful impact to neighbouring amenity  

 Harmful impact to nearby listed buildings 

 Harmful impact to bats and ecology 

 Light pollution 
 

As noted above, a departure from the floorspace restrictions of SD31 has been justified in 
this instance, and it is not considered that there would be a harmful impact to neighbouring 
amenity, listed buildings, bats, ecology and harmful light pollution.  
 
 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable as the principle of development is acceptable, 
as it would accord with the purpose of Policy SD31 and a departure from the floorspace 
restrictions of this policy is justified in this instance.  
 

Page 33



It would not detract from the character and appearance of the area, would not have an 
unacceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, would not have an 
adverse effect on the safety and function of the highway network, would accord with the 
aims and purposes of the South Downs National Park and would preserve the historic and 
architectural setting of the nearby listed buildings. As such, the proposal is in compliance 
with the relevant policies of the South Downs Local Plan and section 66 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
 
10.  Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
 
It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 
Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)./ To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
 
2. Development shall proceed in accordance with the ecological mitigation, compensation 
and enhancement measures detailed within the Preliminary Roost Appraisal and Bat 
Activity Surveys report (ABR Ecology, October 2019) unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. All ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement 
features shall be installed as per ecologist instructions and be retained and maintained in 
perpetuity in a condition suited to their intended function.  
Reason - to protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation Regulations 2017, 
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act (2006), NPPF and with Policy CP21 of the 
East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy.  
 
3. The external materials to be used shall match, as closely as possible, in type, colour, 
and texture those of the existing building unless details of other suitable materials are 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved between the new 
and the existing developments. 
 
4. Upon implementation of this permission, notwithstanding the provisions of Part 1 
Classes A to C of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order, 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that 
Order) there shall be no additions to or extensions/enlargement/alterations of the 
dwellinghouse to which this application relates which result in an increase in habitable 
floorspace without a grant of planning permission from the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - The property lies outside of any recognised settlement where the Local Planning 
Authority seeks to retain a range of dwellings, and therefore wishes to control any further 
alterations, extensions or conversion of the roof space. 
 
5. Approved Plans 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans listed 
below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application". 
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

Page 34



Informative Notes to Applicant: 
 
Environmental Health recommends developers follow the risk management framework 
provided in 'CLR 11 ' Model procedures for the Management of Land Contamination' when 
dealing with land affected by contamination. A leaflet entitled "Development on Potentially 
Contaminated Land" is available as a download on the following East Hampshire District 
Council website 
 
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/ContaminatedLandGuide.pdf 
 
and which contains a template for a Completion Statement. This should be completed by 
the applicant at the end of the development, regardless of whether contamination was 
investigated/discovered on site. 
 
 
11. Crime and Disorder Implications  
 
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications.  
 
12. Human Rights Implications  
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and 
any interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the 
aims sought to be realised.  
 
13. Equality Act 2010  
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality 
duty as contained within the Equality Act 2010.  
 
14. Proactive Working  

The applicants were updated of issues throughout the course of the application, and given 
opportunity to address them. 

 

Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 

 

Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status 

 

Application Form -    05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents  

- Ecosystem Services 
Statement 

  15.11.2019 Approved 

 

Page 35



Application Documents - CIL - 
additional information 

  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents - 
Preliminary roost appraisal and 
bat survey 

  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Application Documents - 
Design and access statement 

  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

OS Extract - Location plan   05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Visual 01 901-D-105  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Visual 02 901-D-106  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Existing site plan 901-D-100  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Existing plans and 
elevations 

901-D-101  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Site plan 901-D-102  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Proposed plans and 
elevations 

901-D-103  05.11.2019 Approved 

 

Plans - Block plan 901-D-104  05.11.2019 Approved 

Reasons - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 36



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed block plan 

 

 

  

Page 37



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

 

Proposed North Elevation 

 

 

Existing North Elevation 

 

 

Page 38



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

Proposed South Elevation 

 

 

 

 

Existing South Elevation 

 

 

Page 39



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

 

Proposed East Elevation 

 

 

Existing East Elevation 

Page 40



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

 

Proposed West Elevation 

 

 

Existing West Elevation 

Page 41



Part 2 Section 1, Item 2 Chestnut Cottage, Newton Valence 

 

 

Proposed floor plan 

 

 

 

Existing floor plan 

Page 42


	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	7.(i) SDNP/19/05797/HOUS - 17 Stoneham Close, Petersfield, GU32 3BX
	7.(ii) SDNP/19/05324/HOUS - Chestnut Cottage, Newton Lane, Newton Valence

